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The Erie County Department of Parks and Recféétion had its beginning ig 1§2a,
when in Méy of that year a bi-partisan Park Commission was created under Chavter
638 of the Laws of the State of New York (see Exhibit #1). The Commission was the
third such park commission to be established in New York State, the other two
were in the vicinity of New York City.

On the next page is a picture of the original Erie County Parks Commissi&n
taken in 1924.

Tpe Commission served without compensation except for the actual expenses
they incurred in carrying out their duties.

From reading through the annual reports, which the Commission was required
by the 1924 law to issue, it ;s apparent th%t the first Cohmission devoted a great
deal of time and -effort into turning the deéﬁre of having a truly fine park
system into ®eality. i

5 )

The Commission comﬁénced its work by making a thorough reconnaissance of the
territory in Erie County so that its recommendation might include sites of natural
beauty and advantages available to people in various“parts of the county.

‘ They'visited properties in all_gectigns.éf the éounty and listened to
suggestions from organizations and citizens interested in the establishment and
developméﬁt of a county park system. The Commissioners then took options on
thirty five sites for periods of time ranging from sixty days to one year.

To bpoaden'their scope, the Commissioners gained further input by obtaining
inform;tioh fr;;“other counties both in and out of New York State, which were
used in their preliminary planning.

On May 5, 1925 the Commissioners presented recommendations to the Erie County -

Board of Supervisors for the purchase of land in the Towns of Lancaster, Aurcra,

- East Hamburg (Orchard Parfﬁ and Tonawanda to be used in the development of the

first four County Parks. The recommendations were referred to the Committee on
Finance and Parks, and on May 19, 1925 the Board passed favorably on these

recommendations.
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Early in September 1925, deeds were filed for the acquisition of lands
creating Chestnut Ridge and Emery Parks. Closely followiﬁg in 1926, land was
acquired for Como Lake Park and Ellicott Creek Park.

At first, these new park areas had no facilities for visitors. Picnickers
were forced to park their cars along an adjacent roadway, walk into the woods to
find a suitable spot, then sit on the ground to eat their lunch.

The increase in attendance soon attested to the popularity of the County
Parks, and brought about the launching of a fixed and definite program of park
development. It was necessary to open the area with roads to permit getting
further into the property. Water was also required so pipes were laid and wells
drilled; in fact, at Chestnut Ridge and Emery Parks, in the absence of any water
supply for toilets and wash béwls, it was néEessary to dam up streams to provide
water reservoirs. Tables and benches, and of course, fireplaces (see picture on
Page L) were‘needed, as well as parking facllltles which as the picture on Page 5
taken around 1930, 1nd1cates were at a premium on busy Sunday afternoons.

In addition to its responsibilities of establishing and developing county
parks in Erie County, the Commiss?on also hadfthe additional authority, under
Chapter 198 of the Laws of 1925 (seé'Page L2l’of Exhibit #2) to: establish,

. acquire, control and manage State Parks and Parkways in Erie County with monies
approprlated by the State.

Acting in its role as agent for the State (officially known as a Regibnal
Park Cammission)-the Commission, with a $100,000 State appropriation, started
negotiations in 1927 and purchased in 1928 a total of 390 acres of land situated
on the northern end of Grand Island, adjacent to what was known as Buckhorn Island.
After its purchase, it became knqwn as Buckhorn State Park.

In cooperation with the Allegany State Park Commission, which had authority
over the land on the Cattaraugus County side of Cattaraugus Creek, the Erie County
Parks Commission paved the way for the State to take control of Zoar Valley and |

turn it into a State Forest Preserve thus saving its natural beauty for future

generations.,
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; The 1925 law also provided that the president of the Erie County Parks_
Commission is a member of the State Council of Parks (see Pages 419 and 420 of
Exhibit #2).
The first Erie County Parks Commission was not only concerned with Just the
purchasing of land and setting up park equipment, they also were concerned with
what today would be considered the ecology. Their concern was manifested in the
regulations they set~up for the parks. Among the ecologically oriented regulaﬁions
were the following which made it unlawful for any person to:
1.) Deposit in any part of any park any garbage, sewerage,'refuse, waste
or other obnoxious material except in receptacles or pits provided
for such purposes.

2.) Place eatables, dishes, or other ﬁ;ensils in thelstreams of any County
Park for the purpose of cleaning tie same or to pollute said stireams in
an§'manner. i ‘

3.) Injure, defacéi disturb or befoul any part of any park or any building,

sign, equipment, or other property“founa therein, or remove, injure or
:destroy an& tree, flower, shrub, erk or other minerals,
The maximum penalty for violating the ab;ve rulés or any of the other 11
B Park Regu}ations was a fine of $lOO;bO and imprisonment of up to 30 days.

The;ﬁrie County Parks Commission remained in existence until 1947 when it was
abolished by the New York State Legislature. In the same act, the Erie County
Board éf Superviﬁors was given the authority to place the operation of tye parks
systeﬁ‘ﬁﬁaér thé.Superintendent of Highways or under such county office or department
as the Board may direct (see Exhibit #3). The Supervisors placed the control of
the parks under éhe Superintendent of Highways. While the parks system was under

the Highways Department, Akron Falls Park was added to bring the total number of
. &
parks to 5.

In 1951 the Board of Supervisors removed control of the parks from the
Superintendent of Highways and created the new post of Superintendent of Parks
(see Exhibit #).



When the new County Charter came into effect in 1961,.the department was
combined with Recreation and became known as the Department of Parks and Recreation.
The new department was made up of the Division of Parks, Division of Recreation
and Bureau of Forestry. The department head is known as the Commissioner of Parks
end Recreation (see Exhibit #5).

As was mentioned above, Chestnut Ridge, Emery, Como and Ellicott Creek Parks
were the first four parks established by the original Erie County Parks Commission.
In the following section, the four parks will be discussed with special emphasis
on the historical highlights of each. park.

CHESTNUT RIDGE PARK

Chestnut Ridge Park is composed of lZBl;acres of land in the vicinity of

Chestnut Ridge Road and Newton Road approximately 15 miles south from downtown

Buffalo. % - L '- '

~
b |

This park originall& consisted of 320 acres purchased from the Grace, Graves,
Zell and Benning families at a total cost of $24,050.00 or approximately $75.00
per acre." Through aﬁquisition and donation b{ such péople as Hamilton Ward,
(one of the original Parks Commissioners),fwhd;willedl2h0 acres and George Schoemacker
(first Superintendent of Chestnut), who donated 39 acres, the park grew to its
present é&ze of 1231 acres. '

Chestnut Ridge was christened by the earliest settlers in the region .who
took the name from the abundance of Great American Chestnut trees on its hills. The
trees ﬁéfé-ravagéd by a blight around 1906, which originated in Asia, and swept
across the United States from the eastern seaboard. During the first years of the
park, the diseased trees were cut down and converted into timber, the boards being
used for the sides of Adirondack shelters (see picture on Page 8).

Chestnut Ridge Park w;s first opened to the public in 1925 for limited use by
roadside picnickers. -

In 1925 a large Casino was erected providing an assembly area with fireplace,

concession stand and other conveniences for the public (see picture on Page 9).
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Page .

The upper floor of the Caulno was in thuurorm of an vbservation deck, which on a

. 8- -

clear day, offered the spoctator an amauing panorama of metropolitan Buffalo,

Lake Erie, Western New York und the Canadian shore. The frame Casino was destroyed

by fire in 1932 and was roplaced by a masonry and timber structure in 1938 which is

Still in service today (sco picture on Page 11).

The first Erie County Parks Commission was quite resourceful. One of the prime
examples of their resourcefulness was the new Casino at Chestnut Ridge Park which

opened in 1938. The stone for the structure was secured, at no cost to the Commissic

from a variety of sources. One supply came from the streets of the City of Buffalo.

As city streets were renovated, the stone from the street itself as well as the curbs

was transported to Chestnut and used in the construction of the Casino, and other

structures such as comfort stations. Another supply came from the rip-rap of the

old Erie Barge Canal (rip-rap is the lining of the canal walls with stone to prevent

. -

erosion).

The timber for the new Casino as well as other park structures was obtained

o Fr— -

from the saw mill set up at Chestnut Ridge to mill timber using storm-downed trees
and trees that were removed to make room for the expanSlon of the park. The saw
nnjjlng process, along with a 51m11ar one at Emery Park also provided tlmber for

the other parks in.the system, thus sav1ng the County a substantial sum of money.

The saw #ill at Chestout Ridge is still in service today and continues to provide

rough timber for the parks. .
Another way the Parks Commission saved the County money was by taking advantage
of a ldrge talented pool of workers whose wages were paild by the W.P.A. Program.

Their services were employed on the Casino construction at Chestnut Ridge and on

Projects in other parks (see photo on Page 12).
Another example of the bargain hunting of the Parks Commission was the

[ ] . .
salvaging of a steel bridge that was part of a trolley line which crossed Cayuga

Creek flowing through Lancaster Town Park. The trolley line was abandoned by the

International Railway. Company and the bridge presented to the Parks Commission.

It was dismantled by parks employees and removed to Chestnut Ridge where it spanned
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one of the numerous gullies. The bridge is now called Grace Glen Bridge. Although
the work was completed in 1934, it is still in service todéy, ter recently under-
going some major reconstruction.

When the name Chestnut Ridge Park is brought up, most people automatically think
of winter sports and ?ecreation, but as early as 1925 Chestnut Ridge was recognized
as having natural advantages which made winter activities such as snowshoeing,
tobogganingﬂand skiiAg most attractive. The photo on Page 1k taken between 1925
and 1932 shows one of the early attractions at Chestnut,a ski jump. The Jump W&Ss
razed a few years later due to the large number of injuries suffered by inexperienced
Jumpers. But winter sports still play a major part of the recreatioﬁal activities
at Chestnut Ridge where well de51gned and safe toboggan runs are available and the
natural terrain is conducive to downhill skzlng,'skl touring, sleddlng and other

winter oriented act1v1tles.
L 3 1}

As mentioned abovev'the original Parks Commission was a bit ahead of their
time when it came to deéling with the environment and conservation. One way they
exhibited their concern was to erect a Pheasant house.and start a Pheasant colony '
-in 1927 at Chestnut Ridge Park. Their aim wé; to rai;e Pheasants in cooperation
with thg New York State Department'pf Conserv;tion, Division of Fish and Game.

- The Pheasant house and colony, still in existence today, is used to shelter newly

4
5

hatched chicks received from the State Department of Conservation in April and
raised until they are liberated throughout the County, about 6 weeks before the
Pheasa%F.ppen hinting seadon begins. The entire operation is supervised by the
S£ate Conservation Department.

A more recent contribution to this conserv&tion cause was started in 1965 when
the Buffalo Muséum of Science cooperated with the Parks Department in the establishmer
of th? Spale Creek Nature lenter. With naturalists from the Museum actipg.as
instructors, groups investigate the many interesting wildlife and environmental areas
within the Nature Center.

EMERY PARK

Emery Park straddles Emery Road in the Town of Aurora, approximately 16 miles

. . . es
smthasst Af dawnteum Ruffaln. The nark orisinated with the purchase of 195 acr
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of land from the Emery family for $23,000 or about -$118.00‘ per acre. The 195 acres
was the homestead of the Emery family since 1834. It was sold by Helen B. Emery
ter the death of her husband, Asher Emery and the surviving family had no desire
to continue in farming. The Emery family gave two distinguished jurists to State
service, Edward and A;her Emery who were justices of the State Supreme Court.

In 1928 the old_Emery Homestead was named Emery Inn and converted intec a -
family restaurant where light refreshments and full meals were available (see
pictures on Page 1. On the second floor of the Inn a museum was created featuring
an array of relics qf rural colonial and c¢ivil war days. Many of the relics were
personal possessions of the Emery family and were loaned through the courtesy of
Mrs. Asher Emery. . :

The Inn continued to be used as a restairant until 1974 when it was converted
into one of 4he Parks and Recreatlon Department's four Friendship Centers. These
Friendship Centers are ﬁsed frequently by Senior Citizen groups for meetings,
parties or other special occasions. “

In 1935 a saw mill was putchased and erected at Emery. It was used to produce
timber for all construction in the park as ;éll as ;urnisﬁing a quantity of timber
for the other parks in the systen.

Another example of the resourcefulness of the Parks Commission is the using
of a bridge which previously was used to carry Knight Road traffic. It was donated
by the Town of Aurora and removéd to Emery Park where it was used to construct the
first steel tob;égan run in the Erie County Parks. It was later removed to Chestnut
Ridge where it was used until 1972.

A unique feature of Emery Park was the construction of an amphitheater designed
to accommodate 600 people ahd situated within a wooded natural bowl in the northern
section Bf the park. An dlevated covered stage was built at the lower end of the
slope which was backed by a thick bank of various stately trees. The entrance was
through a rustic shelter of stone and log construction. The amphitheater was use&

to present plays, concerts and other productions. The area was abandoned and the

shelter rebuilt in 1961.
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Due to its natural terrain, Emery is.;lso qﬁife ﬁopular with winter sports
enthusiasts. Skiers have access to ski tows free of charg; and can warm themselves
in a modern ski chalet. Snowmobile trails, ski touring trails, an ice skating rink
and a bicycle route on a scenic road are also available.

COMO LAKE PARX -

Como Lake Park is located in the Town of Lancaster at the end of Como Lage
Boulevard. &l acres of the original 122 acres of the park were donated free of
chargg by the Village of Lancaster to be used by the County for park purposes only.
Part of the remaining 41 acres were donated by former Village of Lancaster Supervisor
John L. Staeber and the rest was purchased for approximately $8,000. Through the
purchase of additional land, Como Lake Park grew to its present size of 534 acres.

Cayuga Creek flows.throuéh the Park an& was formerly dammed to create a lake.

At the timesthe County éook control of the ﬁ;operty, the dam had deteriorated and it
was necessary for the Cgﬁnty to re—éstablishithe dam in order to recreate the 6 acre
lake. The lake was used for boating and cangeing during the summer and ice skating
during the winter. .

Due to the action of the wind and curreét of the creek on the ice, it was very
diffiétlt to maintain a smooth surféce fo; ice skating so the creek was abandoned
for.ice}ékating and was replaced by a natural rink on shore. Because of the
deteriorating action of the ice on the dam and the increased pollution of the creek,

.

boating and canoeing were also terminated.

&ithéugh E;&uga Creek is not presentl& used for active participation activities,
it still offers passive pleasure to picnickers, hikers, bicycle enthusiasts and
others who might be taking a timé out from using the tennis courts, basketball
courts, or other facilities available at Como Lake Park.

ELLICOTT CREEK PARK &

Ellicott Creek Park is located in the vicinity of Ellicott Creek Road, Niagara

Falls Boulevard and Tonawanda Creek.
In 1926 part of the original 4O acres of the park was purchased for $20,000

and the remainder was given to the County by the Buffalo Farm Exchange ( a real
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Page 1
estate speculating company) to develop a park. The present acreage of the park is
165 acres with much of this land coming into county possession through tax fore-
closure during and after the Depression.
In Ellicott Creek Park we have a unique situation where Erie County actuall v
operates a park that is partially in Niagara County.
Tonawanda Creek forms the boundary between Erie and Niagara Counties. Prio"
to 1930, the State of New York (who has authority over navigable waterways in the
State) purchased land from private owners in Niagara County to be used in the
construction of a new channel for the Creek, thus making it more navigable. The
new channel was dug west of the original creek bed resulting in an island being
formed between the new channel and the original creek (see Exhibit 6). The resulting

island was owned by the State but was giveﬁifo Erie County to develop for park

purposes. _

“ - . . i
Since the boundarytbetween the two counties was the middle of the original creek

bed, Erie County was in the position of developing a park that was partly in Niagara
County. The Erie County Parks Commission did not have authority to operate outside
of Erie County so it was necessary to have tﬁe State iegisiéture legally move the
boundary to the center of the new channel. |

Through an oversight, the State Legislature designated the State right of way
line and not the center line of the creek as the boundary between the two counties.
As exhlblt 6 indicates, the right of way line cuts through the western edge of the
island.(kp@wn as.Ellicott Island) thus resulting in Erie County operating a park
that is partly in Niagara County.

Due to its péarness to the waters of Ellicott and Tonawanda Creek boating and
canoeing became the major attraction of the park and facilities were constructed to
handle the water oriented Equipment (see photo on Page 19).

AKRON FALLS PARK

Akron Falls Park, located in the Town of Newstead and the Village of Akron,

was incorporated into the Erie County Parks system in July, 1947.
The park's original 137 acres were given to the County by the Village of Akron.

- The Villace 4r3+3iallar had Srntandad +a AaralAan +ha manls reines 3+ Atm racmmrees
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However, the Village. of Akron did not have an experienced Parks Department that
could cope with the numerous problems associated with the total acquisition and
design of a new park, so it was decided to transfer the property to the County
Parks Department for development and maintenance.

Since taking it over, the County has expanded the Park so that it presently
consists of 284 acres: 139 of the 284 acres, located on the south side of Skyline
Drive, are undeveloped and waiting adequate funding to implement the master plan.

Such scenic wonders as a 6 acre artifical lake, hiking trails along Murder
Creek and, of course, the falls makes this park especially inviting to the lover
of nature.

The falls is rafher unique in that during dry months, such as in summer, the
flow of water is reduced and the water floﬁs through the crevices in the rock thus
resulting in a water falls about 2/3 up the face of the rock formation (see picture
on next page’ During the spring and after heavy rains, the crevices in the rock
become filled to capac1ty and the water flows over the top of the rock formatlon
resulting in a magnificent cascade.

Another interesting historical aspect of : Akron Eglls Park is the legend behind
the name of Murder Creek. The legend of Murder Creek concerns itself with the love
~ affair between a Seneca Indian maiden named Ah~weh-hah (Wild Rose) and a Seneca
brave Toh—hoh—ne (Gray Wolf). Wild Rose and Gray Wolf were supposed to be married,
but a white man named Sanders objected to the marriage because he wanted to marry
Wild Rose hlmself He told Wild Rose that he woul? rather see her, and anyone else
who stood in hlS way, murdered rather than see her married to a Seneca. The legend
further states that in order to prevent Sanders from interfering with the wedding
pians, wild Rose's father, who was a Chief of the Senecas, planned to escort her to
the Cattaraugus Nation whe;e Gray Wolf would meet her.and the ceremony would take
place. bn the way to the %attaraugus Nation, Sanders caught up with them and
slaughtered the old Chief and attempted to kill the daughter. Wild Rose managed to
escape and was concealed by a white family who lived near wha? is now called Murder
Creek. When Gray Wolf learned of the old Chief's murder and the attempt on the
girl's:life, he rushed to her side to comfort her.
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While Wild Rose and Gray Wolf were praying over the Chief's grave, Sandere
again appeared, this time attacking Gray Wolf. During the ensuing confrontation,
with ax and hunting knives, both opponents lost their lives.

Often Wild Rose would visit the grave of her father and lover to weep and
chant her grief. One-day Wild Rose was found in the graveyard lying upon the grave
of Gray Wolf. Lying cold and lifeless, dead of overexposure and a broken heart.
Beside the grave of her beloved, she was buried.

As the legend goes; now, as in former days, the lovers of midnight who stroll
along Murder Creek may hear the voices of the two lovers as they wander oeer the
modern dust of the ancient trail.

EIMA MEADOWS GOLF COURSE

Responding to the lack of golf faciliti;s in the Elma-Marilla area, the Parks
Department it 1957~ purchased 204. 6 acres of land in the Town of Elma, between
Girdle Road and Buffalo Creek for the establlshment of Elma Meadows Golf Course
which officially opened on May 1.4, 1960. This particular site was chosen because
of its thick, rich top soil and natural terrain Whlch makes it an ideal location
for a profeSSLOnal course. The course 1s,an.i8 hole, par 75 for women and par 70
for men.

In a&dition to the course itself, there is a modern well-equipped club house
(see photo on next page) and a large wooded.area that has been fenced in and groomed

into a plcnlc area.

ISLE VIEW PARK

Isle View Park was opened to the public in 1961 on a limited basis. Although
it is one of our newer parks, Isle View is rich in heritage. The area that Isle
View occupies was once part of the Erie Barge Canal. With the advent of the
motorized tug boat, it was.no longer necessary to use the section of the canal that -
paralleled the Niagara River. The barges could be towed along the river by a tug
boat and no longer had to depend on being towed by a team of mules.

As was mentioned above, the Erie County Parks Commission became an agent for
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the State in 1925 with authority to acquire and develop park lands for the State in
Erie County. Being an agent for the State, the State relinquished authority over a
portion of the canal, from the Buffalo City Line to Tonawanda Creek, to the Parks
Comnission. The plans called for the development of a parkway from the City of
Buffalo to Tonawanda which would offer the traveler a pleasant view of the River.
For reasons that are not clear, the parkway was never constructed. The Commission
also had responsibility to see to it that the canal bed was filled with suitable
materlél.

When the Thruway Authority built the Niagara Section of the Thruway, it took
control of a section of the former canal bed from the Buffalo City Line to the
South Grand Island brldge and left in the bonds of the County the section from the
bridge to Two Mile Creek Isle View was establlshed on the section from the bridge
to Two Mile Greek. x. _ “

Before the canal w&% filled in; the rip;rap (rqcks layed on the banks of the
canal to prevent erosion) was removed and used in the construction of structures
throughout the parks system, such as the Casiﬁo at Chestnut Ridge Park.

Only about one-third of the Isle View Park acreage is currently developed.

The plans for the remaining two—thlrds call for:

1.) 7Making the area accessible for fishing, thus taking advantage of an area
that a New York State Survey indicates is an exceptionally good area for
fishing,

2.3 Preser;e a piece of early Western New York history and a section of the
tow path that ran along the canal,

3.) Preserve the naturalistic aspects of the park.

There is cwrrently a wide variety of animal and plant life in the area. Future

development will attempt t& maintain this wildlife and make it accessible to the
public through the laying out of hikKing and bilkdng trails and cross country skiing

trails for the winter.

The major feature of Isle View and for which it was specifically designed is

the small boat launching facilities. As the Picture on the following page indicates,
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Isle View is quite pepular, especially when speciéi e&ents are held.

The County, in cooperation with the City and the Town of Tonawanda, are
worldng to develop a linear park to start at Isle View and run along Two Mile
Creek to Sheridan Park, thus creating a park complex starting at the Grand Islard
Bridge running north beyond Two Mile Creek and east along Two Mile Creek to Sheridan
Park. )

In 1955, the Plenning Division of Erie County, under the direction of H. Dale
Bossert started looking into the adequacy of the parks system and researching new.
areas éhat could be purchased for park purposes. In 1§60, they issued a report
in conjunction with Niagara County, on the park faciliiies in the Erie-Niagara Region.
Based on comparisons with with county park systems, such as Cook County Illinois and
Milwaukee County Wisconsin, it was apparent?that Erie Couﬁty did not have sufficient
park acreage to adequately serve the res1dents of the County.

The study concluded‘that because of the following reasons, more park land was
needed:

1.) Increase in county population.

2.) Rising Income - the county parks are used mostly by those people who

have moderate incomes. It follows that with more people entering the
;middle income class, more people will be using park facilities.
3.) More leisure time is becoming available. With people worldng shorter
days, shorter weeks and entitled to longer vacations, a greater part of
- a perSon S time can be spent pursuing leisure activities.

4.) Increase in mobility. Primarily through the increased dependence on the
automobile, man has greater access to areas that were previously out of
reach..

After determining thaty more park land was needed, a search was instituted to

locate lsnd that would be suitable for park purposes.

The aims of the search were to:

1.) Locate adequate acreage to produce a ratio of 10 acres of park land for

every 1000 people.
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2.) Locate land in such a pattern ﬁhat woﬁi& iﬂsure fhere would be a.reéional
park within 10 miles of every county resident.
ver researching a variety of sites, the plahners used the following criteriz
to select those sites they felt should finally be acquired:
1.) "Locating suitable park sites in or near the fastest growing urban areas,
especlally in the first ring suburbs to the North and East of the Cltj
of Buffalo.
2.) Preserving the most notable geographic features of the county, such
’ as the bed of 18 Mile Creek and Zoar Valley.
3.) Choosing a variety of sites representative of all kinds of scenery and
recreational potential available in the county.;
L.) Prov1d1ng 81tes suitable for the ;ost popular types of active recreation,
e§Pec1ally th?se not presently available. .
After reviewing many different sites, the searchers decided that the following
13 sites should be acquired. Listed in orde; of priority the sites were:
1.) 18 Mile Creek |
2.) Como Bark Extension
3.) Amherst-Clarence (Beeman Creek)?
L.) ,West Seneca
5.)‘ Sprague Brook
6.) Larkin Woods (Franklin Gulf)
7f)_;Tonaw£hda Creek Parks
8.) Chestnut Ridge Extension
9.) Akron Falls Extension
10.) Emery Park Extension
11.) Hunters Creek Wikderness
12.) Boston Forest Park
13.) Sturgeon Point
In 1960, the County Legislature approved the report and during the 1940's

they authorized the purchase of all the above sites except West Seneca, Sturgeon
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'Point and Tonawanda Creek Parks and added Wendt Beach. Due to prolonged court
proceedings brought About by county condeénatioﬁ éétians, ébme o% the land is .
still not acquired and so the total cost is not yet tabulated.

Up to 87% of the acquisition costs of some of the parcels were paid for by
Federal and State Grants. The county's share of the cost was financed through
the issuance of 1and-acquisition bonds.

The following is a discussion of those parcels of land that were purchased
for the pufgose of creating new parks. Some of the land that was acquired, under

the plan, was used to extend existing parks.
18 MILE CREEK

The 463 acres of 18 Mile Creek Park are located just south of Lake View Road
in the Town of Hamburg. It was originally proposed that sufflclent land be
purchased to provide for a park running from the mouth of the creek on.Lake Erie
to the junct%Pn of_the Ewo branches. Because of local qpposition, the park was
not continued to the lake but stopped four miles short. However, there are still
strong feelings about extending it to the lake shore so as to provide a truly
unique hiking experience and take advantage of the natural beach on the lake front.

The bed of 18 Mile Creek is notable for'%oth its Scenery and geology.

Dr. Austin C. McTigue, in recommending thé preservation of 18 Mile Creek Valley,
" states tQ@t it is internationally famous, that, in fact, Buropean geologists

have been known to refer to Buffalo as "the City near 18 Mile Creek." The 300 or
so acres of wooded upland at the Juncture of the two streams provide a possible
site for group ﬁ&énickingoonly a dozen or so milés from downtown Buffalo.

18 Mile Creek Park is not intended to be a highly developed park. The only
capital facilities planned for the park (which may be years away due to budget
constraints) are a small parking area, comfort station and perhaps a picnic shelter
80 as to make it accessible to that portion of the public who enjoy a truly
Picturesque area.

The park is presently considered a land bank and not open to general use

because of a lack of adequate facilities for the public.
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Located on 391 acres in the vicinity of Lapp and Salt Roads in Clarence,
Beeman Creek Park was purchased in 1966 with the intent to relieve overcrowding
in two of our most used parks - Ellicott Creek Park and Akron Falls Parx. Witn
the development of the new University of Buffalo and the UDC Audubon Community,
there is a great dem;nd for more park lands in this area.

The preliminary plans for Beeman Creek Park call for the development of the
park in 3 major areas. The first is a famlly sports area to include: Dbaseba’l,
tennis, natural ice rink and other kindred activities. Another area will be seu
aside for picnicking and over half of.the park is designated for use as a nature

sanctuary and study area.

SPRAGUE BROOK PARK . B

Located in the Towns of Concord and S;rdinia, Sprague Brook was opened to the
public in 1972. ~ §: "

Sprague Brook wa; purchaséd primarily to be used for overnight family camping.
It opened with 27 camp sites and currently has approximately 180 sites.

The Park consists of 950 acres of secénd growth woodland and upland meadows
traversed by a gravel-bed brook geclogically different from the shale streams
of Franklin Gulf, Hunters Creek and 18 Mile Creek. The area also offers a pleasant
view of the rolling hills.

In addition to the development of the 100 camp sites, 3 man-made, spring-fed
ponds have been constructed to help control surface drainage and provide a fishirg
area‘}or children. Also available are marked trails for snowmobiling, hiking and
cross country skiing.

The development of Sprague Brook has been carred out with a B.O.R. (Bureau
of Outdoor Recreation) erant from the State which paid 50% of the developmental coS”

WENDT BEACH PARK

Wendt is located in the Town of Evans on the shore of Lake Erie just south of
Sturgeon Point. The Wendt property was purchased entirely with county funds from

the Wendt family whose main house was converted into a Friendship Center used
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extensively during the summer months by Senior C;éizeg orgapizat?ons and ot@er
groups.

Although the master plan for the Park is still in the planning and development
stage, Wendt is open to the public for limited use. Since opening in 1973, the
popularity of the natural beach has grown to the point where the limited sanitary,
parking and picnickigg facilities are already being overcrowded on summer weekends.

Future plans call for providing adequate picnicking facilities, expanded parking
and a sporﬁs area. However, it must be emphasized that due to budget constraints,
this work may take several years to complete.

HUNTERS CREEK WILDERNESS

Hunters Creek Wilderness located in the Town of Wale;, was purchased primarily
in 1965 from Howard Kellogg, a partner in the Spencer Keliogg Corporation.

When the area was purchased from Mr. K;llogg, there was an understanding between
Mr. Kellogg #nd tke Cou%ty that the area would not be turned into a park but rather
would be kept a wilderngss area.. When funding arrangements were made with the State
for the purchase of the site, it was reaffirmed that the site would remain a
wilderness type area.

Currént long range plans call for the construction of only limited facilities
such as a parking area, comfort station and perhaps a picnic shelter at the main
entrance;;nd establishing a network of trails so as to permit access to those people

who find pleasure exploring nature in protected surroundings. .



